SENATE FI NANCE COW TTEE
March 4, 2008
9:13 a.m

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Stedman called the Senate Finance Comm ttee neeting
to order at 9:13:43 AM

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Lyman Hof f man, Co-Chair
Senator Bert Stedman, Co-Chair
Senator Charlie Huggins, Vice-Chair
Senator Kim Elton

Senat or Donny O son

Senat or Joe Thomas

Senat or Fred Dyson

MEMBERS ABSENT

None
ALSO PRESENT

aiff St one, Staff, Representative W/I son; M chael
Eber hardt, Superintendent, Southeast, Division of Parks and
Qut door Recreation; Senator Bettye Davis, Sponsor; Tom
Qoerneyer, Staff, Senator Davis; Gey Mtchell, Drector,
D vision of Labor Standards & Safety, Departnent of Labor &
Wirk Force Devel opnment; Nancy Davis, Vice President, Al aska
Nurses Associ ation; Rod Betit, President, CEO Al aska State
Hospital and MNursing Hone Association (ASHNHA); Senator
Lesil MQuire, Sponsor; Pat Shier, Drector, D vision of
Retirement and Benefits, Departnment of Admi nistration
Represent ati ve Peggy W/ son;

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Harvey Brandt, Self, Sitka; Deborah Lyons, Executive

director, Sitka Trail Wrks; Marlene Canpbell, GCtizens
Advi sory Board, Sitka; Ron Adler, Chief Executive Oficer,
Al aska Psychiatric Institute, (API); Susan  Johnst on,

Director for Conpensation and Benefits, Providence Hospital;
Rebecca Bolling, Al aska Nurses Association, Ketchikan; Pat
Huggi ns, Human Resource Director, North Star; Panela Reid,
register nurse; Tom Renkes, Executive Director, Al aska
Nurses Associ ation; Debbie Thonpson, President, Al aska
Nur ses Associ ation, Anchorage

SUVMVARY
SB 28 "An Act relating to Ilimtations on
mandatory overtinme for registered nurses and

Senat e Finance Committee 1 03/04/08 9:13 A M



i censed practi cal nur ses in heal th care
facilities; and providing for an effective date."

SB 28 was heard and HELD in Committee for further
consi der ati on.

SB 170 "An Act requiring that health <care insurers
provi de i nsurance coverage for well-baby exans."

CSSB 170 was REPORTED out of Committee with a “do
pass” recommendation and fiscal note #2 by the
Departnment of Commerce Comunity & Economc
Devel opnent .

CSHB 176( RES)
"An Act creating the Fort Rousseau Causeway State
Hi storical Park."

CSHB 176( RES) was REPORTED out of Committee with a
“do pass” recommendation and fiscal note #2 by the
Depart ment of Natural Resources.

SB 249 "An Act establishing the Al aska capstone avionics
revolving loan fund and relating to the fund; and
providing for an effective date."

SB 249 was SCHEDULED but not HEARD.

CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO 176(RES)

"An Act creating the Fort Rousseau Causeway State
Hi storical Park."

9:14:45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PEGGY W LSON, Sponsor, presented HB 176. The
legislation would establish Fort Rousseo Causeway State
Hi storical Park. The area is currently managed under the
Departnment of Transportation and Public Facilities (DOTPF).
The legislation would transfer managenent to the Departnent
of Natural Resources. In the build up for VNI, the
Departnment of the Defense constructed fortifications at
several l|ocations encircling Sitka Sound. An 8,000 foot rock
and gravel road was built connecting several small islands
west of the then Navy's Sea Plane and Operating Base in
Sitka. This causeway termnated at the Arny's comand
headquarters naned Fort Rousseau on Mkhnati | sl and. The
causeway has been added to the National Register of Hi storic
pl aces and designated a landmark by the National Park
Service. To rehabilitate the Causeway, Sitka Trail Wrks has
received federal and state grants, but cannot continue to
proceed until the land is transferred to the Departnent of
Nat ural Resources.

Senat e Finance Committee 2 03/04/08 9:13 A M



Co-Chair Stedman asked for nore information regarding
CGeneral Rousseo.

CLI FF STONE, STAFF, REPRESENTATIVE WLSQON, explained that
Rousseo was a brigadier general comm ssioned to accept
Al aska on behalf of the United States on Cctober 18, 1867

He also served 2 years in the United States House of
Representatives and was buried in Arlington cenetery as a
hero of the Cvil War.

Co-Chair Hoffrman, referencing fiscal note #2, asked if the
$14.5 thousand for personal services reflects costs for
exi sting personnel or a new enpl oyee.

M. Stone understood that the fiscal note represented
addi tional costs for existing personnel.

M CHAEL EBERHARDT, SUPERI NTENDENT, SOUTHEAST, DI VISION OF
PARKS AND OUTDOOR RECREATI ON, expl ained that the fiscal note
represents additional funds for the existing park speciali st
position. The funds wll be used for hiring additional
seasonal enployees to take over sone of the nore nenial
tasks in order for the park specialist to attend to needs of
t he Causeway.

Representative WIson explained that there is a business
plan for the Park. The plan indicates that nodest tourism
dollars would net approximately $12,000.00 a year. As the
program grows, a projected $20,000 would be available for
t he General Fund.

Co- Chai r Stedman asked how the Park is accessed.
Representative Wl son said the area is accessible by boat.

Co-Chair Stedman asked why the area is not accessible by
car. Representative WIson explained that the area is
closed off to traffic due to its proximty to the airport.

9:21:27 AM

Co-Chair Hoffman said there is no representation of
contributions to the General Fund reflected in the fisca
not e.

M. Eberhardt responded that the Departnent has not been
involved with the private entity that authored the business
plan since the area is not currently a state park. He had
seen the nunbers and agreed with them but could not verify
t hem

Co-Chair Stedman provided sone history of the site and
observed that the Causeway is in front of Japonski |Island.

Senat e Finance Committee 3 03/04/08 9:13 A M



He explained that there is a plan to put in a small dock to
encourage the visitor industry to bring tourists in to visit
the site. He further explained that considerable clean up
IS necessary, which requires addressing concerns regarding
native historical sites.

Senator Thomas asked if there was a connection between
Japonski |sland and the mainl and.

Co- Chair Stednman explained that a causeway was built by the
mlitary to bring equipnent and artillery out to Japonski
| sl and.

Senator Thonmas asked if there was any connection to the
mai nl and from Japonski |sl and. Co-Chair Stedman said
Japonski Island is connected by the John W O Connel
Bri dge. Senator Thomas asked why the vehicle traffic had
been cutoff. Co-Chair Stednman expl ained that vehicle access
was cut off when the airport was built.

9: 25: 20 AM

HARVEY BRANDT, SELF, SITKA, testified via teleconference, a
retired teacher and park ranger testified in support of HB
176. He provided sonme history of the Park, highlighting
that sone of the 150,000 young nen and wonen who cane to
Alaska in WAl returned to make Alaska their hone. He
further pointed out the inportance of the Tlingit Native
history within the Park. He felt the establishnent of the
Park woul d pronote and devel op tourismin Sitka.

DEBORAH LYONS, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, SITKA TRAIL WORKS

testified via teleconference, in support of HB 176. The
organi zation is in support of placing the managenent of the
Causeway with the Division of Parks. Her organization has
funds to continue to restore and renovate facilities. In
answer to a question asked earlier regarding the business
pl an, she said nunbers are based on conparisons of the
exi sting tour conpany Sitka Bi ke and Hi ke. She inforned the
Commttee that, in 2005, the conpany reported 4000 tours. In
2007, they reported an increase to 6000 tours. Wth that
amount of visitors, she maintained that the revenue from
tourism could pay for the Park’s operation and supervision
of the Causeway.

MARLENE CAMPBELL, CI TlIZENS ADVI SORY BQOARD, SITKA, testified
via tel econference, in support of HB 176. She said citizens
had worked for over two decades to get the Causeway into
safe care to permt the public to access and enjoy the
i sl ands. She explained that t he Depar t ment of
Transportation and Public Facilities supports the transition
to Park Mnagenent, which would allow for a plan to nove
forward. She nmaintained that the project 1is revenue
positive and has the support of tourism conpanies and the

Senat e Finance Committee 4 03/04/08 9:13 A M



comunity. She further noted that Sitka Trail Wrks has
received significant federal funds to clean up and restore
t he area.

9:34:46 AM

Co-Chair Stedman said the project provides the opportunity
for state parks to be revenue positive rather than a cash
consuner.

Senator O son asked if any wld |ife concerns had been
addressed wth regards to the project.

M. Eberhardt clarified that a study regarding wldlife had
not been done, since there are no plans for construction.
He explained that the area is primarily used for picnicking
and canpi ng.

9:37: 07 AM

Co-Chair Hoffman MOVED to REPORT CSHB 176 (RES) out of
Committee with individual recomendations and the attached
fiscal notes.

There being NO OBJECTIQON, it was so ordered.

CSHB 176( RES) was REPORTED out of Committee with a “do pass”
recomendation and fiscal note #2 by the Departnent of
Nat ural Resour ces.

AT EASE: 9:37:45 AM
RECONVEI NE: 9:42: 36 AM

SENATE BILL NO. 28

"An Act relating to limtations on mandatory overtine
for registered nurses and |licensed practical nurses in
health care facilities; and providing for an effective
date."

9:42: 43 AM

SENATOR BETTYE DAVI S, SPONSCR, introduced SB 28.

TOM OBERVEYER, STAFF, SENATOR DAVI S, observed that SB 28 was
nodel ed after Congressional Resolution #791. He read from
t he sponsor statenent:

SB 28, hereafter also to be known as “The Al aska Safe
Nursing and Patient Care Act,” prevents Al aska
registered and l|icensed practical nurses from being
forced to work mandatory overtinme, i.e., conpulsory as
opposed to voluntary work in excess of an agreed to,
pr edet er m ned, regularly scheduled shift, and it

Senat e Finance Committee 5 03/04/08 9:13 A M



protects patients fromthe dangers caused by overworked
nur ses. Too often Alaska' s nurses are overworked,
under paid, and undervalued. This bill will inprove the
lives of nurses and their famlies and enhance the
quality of patient care in comunities across the

state. It will let nurses decide if they can provide
their same quality care while working overtinme. SB 28
strictly limts the use of nmandatory overtine for

nurses to situations in which an official state of
energency is declared by federal, state or a |ocal
governnent, or other stated exceptions. It does,
however, allow nurses to work overtinme voluntarily when
they feel they can continue to provide safe, quality
care. This legislation also protects nurses from
discrimnation and retaliation by enployers who
continue to force them into working hours beyond what
they believe safe for quality care. SB 28 requires
that health care facilities nonitor, docunent, and
report overtinme semannually and face penalties for
knowi ng violations. Faced with nursing shortages
nati onw de, Al aska needs to encourage and support
nurses to enter and stay in the profession. SB 28 is a
| ong overdue step in that direction.

9:49: 18 AM

Senator O son asked if the provision effected all nurses
regardl ess of classification. M. Cberneyer clarified that
the bill includes all |licensed practical nurses and all
regi stered nurses with sonme exceptions.

Senator (O son asked if rural hospitals had expressed
concerns regarding mandatory overtine. M. Ooerneyer said
he had not heard from rural areas. He commented that there
were nenbers of nurse’s organizations in the audience that
could respond to the question. Senator Davis observed that
there had been no testifiers fromrural comunities in any
of the previous conmttee hearings.

Senator O son stressed that unanticipated del ays can happen
in rural areas. He described situations that would not
allow for the 10 hour rest requirenent, specifically nedical
airlift situations. M. Oberneyer explained that there were
changes nmade to SB 28 to acconmpbdate energency situations,
specifically nedical airlift situations.

Co-Chair Stedman asked if the legislation would provide a
managenent tool to reduce the nursing gap. Senat or Davi s
differed to the nurses associ ation.

Co-Chair Stednman asked if the nmandatory overtine is a
negoti ated | abor i ssue.

Senat e Finance Committee 6 03/04/08 9:13 A M



Senator Davis said the issue should be worked out between
enpl oyer and enployee, but acknow edged that this was not
happening. Nurses mmintain that they are putting in nore
hours than is appropriate, hence the need for |egislation.

9:53: 03 AM

Co- Chair Stednman asked if the provision would alleviate the
nur si ng shortage. Senator Davis responded that, though it
m ght not alleviate the situation, it my pronote retention
of nurses in Al aska.

Senator Steadman asked who opposes SB 28. Senat or Davi s
observed that that the Al aska State and Hospital and Nursing
Home Association (ASHNHA) would be testifying in opposition
to the bill.

Senator Steadnman questioned the Departnent of Labor and
Wor kf orce Devel opnent’s fiscal note for $97.2 thousand for a
new wage and hour investigator. He expected that the
Comm ttee would | ook at zeroing out the fiscal note.

GREY M TCHELL, DI RECTOR, DIVISION OF LABOR STANDARDS &
SAFETY, DEPARTMENT OF LABOR & WORK FORCE DEVELOPMENT,
addressed the $97.2 thousand fiscal note. He explained the
fiscal note represents the cost of one investigator to dea

wi th conplaints fromnurses regardi ng mandatory overtime and
di scrim nation issues. He said, as of February 28, 2008

there are potentially 10,000 conpl ainants. He nmai ntai ned
that the fiscal note is conservative in view of the
potential anmpount of conpl aints.

9:55:21 AM

Co-Chair Stedman asked if the Departnment supports SB 28.
M. Mtchell said the Departnent has no position on the
bill.

Senat or Huggi ns asked if the provision is precedent setting.
He further inquired if there are other nechani sns avail abl e
to the Departnment to address the issue of mandatory
overtine.

9:59: 54 AM

M. Mtchell said he could not suggest another mnmechani sm
He explained that if the provision is enacted the burden of
enforcenent falls on the Departnent of Labor and Workforce
Devel opnent, as outlined in the provision.

Senator Huggins asked if there are any innovative ideas for
addressing the issue.

Senat e Finance Committee 7 03/04/08 9:13 A M



Co-Chair Hoffman addressed the fiscal note and asked what
the $19.1 thousand under contractual represented.

10: 01: 58 AM
M. Mtchell explained that the contractual |ine represents
a wide range of overhead costs. He clarified that the

Departnment is not contracting with any entity.

Senator O son asked how many conplaint actions have been
brought to the Departnent. M. Mtchell said there were
approxi mately 500 wage clains filed per year.

Senator Elton asked how many wage and hour investigators
were enpl oyed by the Departnent. M. Mtchell said there
are 10 wage and hour investigators statew de.

Senator Elton reasoned that additional responsibilities
added to the position would result in a 10 percent increase
in the work [ oad. M. Mtchell said that was a reasonabl e
approxi mati on.

Senator Elton surmsed that if investigators were |ocated
around the State and no position was added, the travel and
contractual conponent would be unnecessary. M. Mtchell
said the travel conponent woul d be necessary as
investigators need to travel to investigate conplaints.
Discrimnation cases in particular require travel to the
pl ace where the conplaint initiates.

Senator Elton ascertained that if there are investigators
avai l able around the state it would preclude the need for
travel funds. M. Mtchell agreed that was a fair
assessnent .

10: 05: 13 AM

Senator Thomas asked if the fines inposed in SB 28 are
standard for wage violations.

M. Mtchell said the fines proposed in SB 28 are civi
fines. There are no civil fines pursued by the Wage and
Hour Division under the wage enforcenment requirenents. In
cases where an enployee does not get paid overtinme or
m ni rum wage, the statute provides for |iquidated damages to
be paid to the enpl oyee. The difference in SB 28 is that
civil penalties would be applied to those in violation of
the provision to be paid to the state.

10: 06: 49 AM

RON ADLER, CH EF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, ALASKA PSYCH ATRIC
I NSTI TUTE, (API), testified via teleconference. He noted
that APl is neutral on the bill. He explained that if the

Senat e Finance Committee 8 03/04/08 9:13 A M



provision passed there would be ramfications for the
hospi tal . He informed the Committee that prospective
enpl oyees are notified that mandatory overtime is used.
There have been not had a grievances filed to date.

SUSAN JOHNSTON, DI RECTOR FOR COVPENSATI ON AND BENEFI TS,
PROVI DENCE HOSPI TAL, testified via teleconference, in
opposition to SB 28. She stated that the hospital would
rather work with the nanagenent team to address nurse’s
concerns. She inforned the Commttee that the hospital has
provisions within the collective bargaining agreenent to
mnimze overtine.

Senator Elton asked if the hospital had nurses who are
working nore than 14 hours without a 10 hour break between
shifts. M. Johnston explained that the hospital does have
nurses working overtinme. She explained that there is a
provision within the contract that provides prem um pay for
those with less than an eight hour break between shifts.
There is no mandatory overtine at Provi dence Hospital.

Senator Elton asked for an explanation of mandatory overtine
and questioned if it differs from mandatory call. Ms.
Johnston replied that only three units in their |argest
hospital have mandatory call. Mandatory call requires nurses
to be available “on call”. Nurses are paid for that tine.
Nurses within that group understand the requirenent when
they are hired for the position.

Senator Elton asked if mandatory call can be applied even
after a nurse has had a fourteen hour shift. Ms. Johnston
confirmed that there is potential for that circunstance.

REBECCA BCOLLI NG ALASKA NURSES ASSOQOCI ATI ON, KETCHI KAN,
testified via teleconference, in support of SB 28. She
explained the challenges and difficulties of working
overti ne. She said if a nurse is on call they can, after
working a 12 hour shift, return five hours later and stil
work the regularly scheduled shift the next day. She added
that mandatory overtine is frequently used in the operating
room and poses a safety risk to both patients and staff. She
further noted that the present conditions are not conducive
for recruitnment of new staff.

Senator O son asked Ms. Bolling if there is equity in the
request when considering sone registered nurses serve in
adm ni strative positions, rather than direct patient care.
Ms. Bolling said that administrative staff is not called in
for mandatory overtine. Mandatory overtime is generally
used for nurses in direct patient care.

10:15: 21 AM

Senat e Finance Committee 9 03/04/08 9:13 A M



Senator Thomas asked if nurses work beyond a 12 hour shift
within a 14 day period. Ms. Bolling said that it is routine
wi th approxi mately 20 nurses working nore than 80 hours in a
week.

PAMELA REI D, REG STERED NURSE, testified via tel econference,
in opposition to SB 28. She disagreed with the provision
for three reasons: 10 hours rest required between shifts,
restricted work hours to 14 hours, and no provision for

bai |l or nurses. She explained that bailor nurses work a
reduced nunber of hours, during inconvenient tines, and are
paid for working a full shift. She said there is no
mandatory on call or overtinme at North Star. She poi nt ed
out that the provision does not preclude nurses from putting
in extra shifts at another facility. She recommended a
change in Sec. 18.20.400 (c),6: delete “14 consecutive hours
wi thout a 10 hour break” insert “16 hours with 7.5 hour
break”. She concluded by requesting that |anguage be added

t o address bail or nurses.

DEBBI E  THOMPSON, PRESI DENT, @ ALASKA NURSES ASSOCI ATI ON,
ANCHORAGE, testified via teleconference, in support of SB
28. She outlined her history in the field. She noted the
danger of overworked nurses and opined that nurses com ng
into the profession would not want to work in the current
envi ronment .

10: 25: 12 AM

TOM RENKES, EXECUTIVE Dl RECTOR, ALASKA NURSES ASSOCI ATI ON
testified via tel econference, testified in support of SB 28.
He outlined his extensive work history in the nursing field
and read fromstatenent (copy on file).

In the last 5 nonths | have personally visited and
spoke wth nurses in Fairbanks Valdez, Anchorage,
W angel |, Ketchi kan, Juneau, and Wasilla, as well as

several groups of nursing students from UAA and their
faculty. One hundred of those nurses interviewed said
mandatory overtine is a problemin their career, while
the students indicated they would not work at a
facility where overtine was the rule and mandatory
overtime was a policy.

There is major arbitration occurring as we speak for
one facility's inability to offer neals and breaks to
nurses during the course of a work day. There is
another facility that has on RN on her 7" 12 hour shift
in 8 days, which is why she cannot be here today.
Finally, one nurse at a Southeast facility indicated it
was j ust expected they take mandatory call because they
al ways work short.

Senat e Finance Committee 10 03/04/08 9:13 A M



M. Renkes continued his testinony with a quote from the
Nat i onal Acadeny of Science, Institute of Medicine, Authored
by John Howard MD: Report section 6.1 “To reduce error
produci ng fatigue, state regulatory bodies should prohibit
nursing staff fromproviding patient care in any conbination
of schedul ed shift, mandatory overtinme, volunteer overtine
in excess of 12 hours in any given 24 hour period, in an
excess of 60 hours in a seven day period’”. By 2002, eight
states prohibited mandatory overtine, after the reports five
other states inmmediately enacted | egislation.

There is simlar legislation nationally that covers airline
pilots, railroad engineers, police officers, firefighters,

maritime personnel, physicians and pilots in mlitary
conbat. He referenced an editorial on fatigue from February
27, 2008, Anchorage Daily News. The article nmentioned

several cases of fatigue anong nursing staff and determ ned
that by increasing nursing staff to reduce fatigue,
hospitals could save noney. He informed the Conmttee that
there are 9,000 registered nurses licensed in the state. Six
t housand registered nurses live in Alaska: 4,500 work in
acute care. It has been proven by the Board of Nursing that
newy licensed nurses are |eaving Alaska due to the work
envi ronment .

Senator Elton asked if patients have the right to request a
nurse that has worked only four hours that day. M. Renkes
said a patient does not have that right.

10: 30: 16 AM

NANCY DAVIS, VICE PRESIDENT, ALASKA NURSES ASSCOCI ATI ON,
testified in support of SB 28 and outlined her history in
the nursing field. She provided some information on the
Bailor plan explaining that originally the intent was to
establish two, 12 hour nursing shifts to cover weekends. The
pl an has changed considerably fromits original intent. She
mai ntai ned that extending the shifts creates a safety risk
to patients as well as to the nursing staff. She inforned
the Commttee that in the Gallup poll nurses have been rated
as the nunber one profession for professional honesty and
et hi cs. As an extension of that, patients expect that
nurses speak for patient safety. She asked the Committee to
support nurses and patient safety by passing SB 28.

ROD BETI T, PRESI DENT, CEO, ALASKA STATE HOSPI TAL AND NURSI NG
HOVE ASSOCI ATI ON (ASHNHA), testified in opposition to SB 28.
He presented a chart, ASHNHA 2004 and 2005 Nurse Overtine
Survey Results — Version ‘D, 2/03/06 (copy on file). He
clarified that 10 of the facilities represented in the chart
have negotiated |abor agreenments governing nandatory
overtime. The other 21 facilities deal wth overtime issues
anong staff. The survey reveled that there is no
significant use of mandatory overtinme other than at the

Senat e Finance Committee 11 03/04/08 9:13 A M



Al aska Psychiatric Institute. He explained that the
psychiatric facilities have unique circunstances that

require the need for nmandatory overtine. He further
clarified that there is an expectation that nurses be on
call in certain units. He pointed out that the mandatory

overtinme for Bartlett Hospital is a result of excess hours
of nurses in surgery. He further explained that there is a
pattern of tenporary nurse hours purchased to fill the gap
i n nursing hours.

M. Betit reported that ASHNA has been working with the
University O Alaska Anchorage to inprove the nursing
short age. Menbers of ASHNHA contribute financially to the
expanded nursing program which is now produci ng 200 nurses
a year wth 93% of the nurses continuing to work in Al aska.
ASHNHA has not seen supportive docunentation that mandatory
overtinme is a problem and does not support SB 28.

Senator Elton referenced earlier comments regarding Bartlett
Regi onal Hospital mandatory overtime for operating room (OR)
nurses. He asked if mandatory overtime for OR nurses is an
issue for other facilities. M. Betit said at other
facilities OR nurses have worked out the issue through |abor
agr eenent s.

Senator Elton referenced the chart and asked if “on-call”
represents mandatory overtine. M. Betit confirmed that was
correct.

Senator Elton asked who had been surveyed. M. Betit said
the survey went to each CEO of the facilities to give to
their personnel departnment to collect the information.

Senator Thonmas asked what hospitals consider a safe anount
of hours for sonmeone to work in acute care. M. Betit said
the facilities consider that with staff when scheduling.

10: 38: 41 AM

Senator Thomas asked if the hours are based on a five day
work week. M. Betit explained that if you are working a 12
hour shift, typically that would be a three day week.

Senator Thomas asked why Providence Hospital was not
represented in the tenporary nursing hour’s columm. M.
Betit said they do have tenporary nurses, but their data was
not collected in that specific detail.

10: 39: 50 AM

Senator O son asked how many |awsuits have been filed
against any of the institutions due to m stakes made by
nur ses. M. Betit said he is unaware of any |awsuits and
referenced the chart.

Senat e Finance Committee 12 03/04/08 9:13 A M



Senator Elton asked if the grievances are filed by nurses or
patients. M. Betit said the chart represents grievances
filed by nurses.

In response to Senator Elton’s question, M. Betit said a
grievance can be filed any tinme a person feels they have
been treated i nappropriately by an enpl oyer.

Senator Elton asked if patients can request a nurse that is
not on overtimne.

10:41: 35 AM

M. Betit said he did not think that was possible at any
facility. He offered to follow up on the question.

Senator O son asked if physicians have commented on the
provi sion. Senator Davis said that there is one letter of
support fromDr. Patrick Nolan in the packets.

SB 28 was HEARD and HELD in Commttee for further
consi derati on.

AT EASE: 10:43:44 AM
RECONVI ENE:  10:44:15 AM
SENATE BILL NO 170

"An Act requiring that health care insurers provide
i nsurance coverage for well-baby exans."

Co-Chair Hoffman MOVED to ADOPT Work Draft for SB 170, 25-
LS0868/ K. There being NO OBJECTION, it was so ordered.

SENATOR LESI L MCGUI RE, SPONSCOR, explained that the Conmttee
Substitute changes the coverage for well baby exans from a
mandat ed coverage to a nmandated offering. She expl ai ned
that the National Federation of I|ndependent Business (NFIB)
expressed sonme concern that smaller businesses nmay not see a
benefit to providing well baby coverage. The changes in the
Comm ttee Substitute represent a conprom se to address those
concerns.

Co-Chair Stedman pointed out a letter form NFIB w thdraw ng
their previous opposition to the bill. He al so noted that
Senat or Huggi ns had requested the Sponsor submt the incone
guidelines for Denali Kid Care (copy on file).

PAT SH ER, DI RECTOR, DIVISION OF RETI REMENT AND BENEFI TS
DEPARTMENT OF ADM NI STRATION, testified in support of the
Comm ttee Substitute. He informed the Committee that
Comm ssioner Kreitzer had just signed a nmeno adding well
baby coverage for the 5,500 state enployees covered under

Senat e Finance Committee 13 03/04/08 9:13 A M



the select benefits plan. The addition of that coverage
was the result of part of an extensive cost benefit
anal ysi s. He observed that consultants identified a return
of $4.30 in direct nedical costs savings for every $1.00
invested in routine child inmmunizations.

Co-Chair Stedman asked if the Departnment is in support of

the 1egislation. M. Shier said the Departnment could not
cooment on what the effects may be for the insurance
i ndustry. He maintained that for the State’'s self-insured
plan, the bill nmakes fiscal sense.

Co-Chair Hoffman MOVED to REPORT CSSB 170 (FIN) out of
Committee with individual recomrendations and the attached
fiscal notes.

There being NO OBJECTION, CSSB 170 (FIN) version K was
nmoved from Committee with individual recomendations and
attached fiscal notes.

ADJ OURNIVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 10:49 AM

Senat e Finance Committee 14 03/04/08 9:13 A M



